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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017
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‘The Trustees present thelr annual report togeitier willi the financial statements and auditor's report of the charitable company for the 1
September 2016 to 31 August 2017. The Annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees' report, and a Directors' report under
company law.

‘Northern Education Trust

Nortbern Education Trust (the "Academy Trust") was formed in 2012. Io five years it has grown from a single academy to ten primary
academijes and ten secondary academies which are located in three hub areas:

1. North East England conurbations of Tyne-Wear and Tees Valley

2. Yorkshire copurbations of the Aire-Calder-Deame Valleys

3. Bolton-Manchester conurbation

During the 2016/17 year the Academy Trust was funded for ¢ 11,700 students (split 8,000 secondary and 3,700 primary) and employed
1,951 staff equating t0.1,432 full time equivalent staff

Northern Education Trust (NET) aim to transform young peoples’s lives through excellent learning experiences leading to outstanding
outcomes that ensure they can fulfil their potential. The Trust's core values are drawn from our Trustees’ belief that the welfare of others
is the first concern of all and that the education of every child is beld to be of equal value.

Northern Education Trust are passionate about the role of schools in their communities and in being at the heart of learning. Trustees are

-committed to working with local authorities, other agencies and industry and want our academies to be amongst the best nationally and

internationally, so that our pupils and students can have the opportunity to be economically self-reliant and have the ability to choose
their own pathways to snccess.

Structure, governance and management
a. ETHOS, VISION and PURPOSE

Constitution ’

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee (incorporated in Jupe 2012) and an exempt charity, The charitable company’s
memorandum and articles of association (7 September 2016) are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust. The Trustees
of Northern Education Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company is
known as Northern Education Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.
b. MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event of it being wound
up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for
the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

¢. TRUSTEES' INDEMNITIES

Subject to the provision of the Companies Act 2006, every Trustee and Officer is indemnified against any liability incurred by them in
their capacity in defending any proceedings whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is given in favour or in which they are aquitted
or in connection with any application in which relief is grapted to them by the court from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty
or breach of trust in relation to the affairs of Northern Education Trust The insurance purchased for the Trust provides cover up to £5
million on an annual aggregate limit basis.

4. METHOD OF RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT OR ELECTION OF TRUSTEES

The types of Trustees and their recruitment, term and appointment is set out within the Articles of Association and Scheme of Delegation.
The members of the Trust shall comprise of;

1. L H Walton
2. C Roberts
3 T B Oglethorpe (deceased 28 March 2017)
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

4. ‘the chair of the Trustees; and
5. any person appointed under Article 16.

The Members may appoint up to eleven Trustees through such process as they may determine. The total puraber of Trustees including the
Chief Executive Officer who are employees of the Trust shall not exceed one third of the total number of Trustees.

¢. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ADOPTED FOR THE INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF TRUSTEES

The training and induction provided for new Trustees depends on their existing skills, knowledge and experience. Where necessary,
induction will provide training on charity, educational, governance, HR, legal and financial matters. All pew Trustees will be offered o
tour of the Trust’s academies and tbe chance to meet students, staff and Local Govemors. All Trustees are provided with a Trust

induction and copies of policies, procedures, latest minutes, financial statements and other documents they require to undertake their role
effectively as Trustees.

f. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The governance structure of the Trust is on two levels: the Trust Board then its subcommittees and individual Academy Local Goveming
Bodies and regional hubs. The Trust Board is responsible for the strategic decision making of the Trust. The Trust Board of Directors is
respoosible for ensuring that high standards of corporate governance are maintained. It exercises its powers and functions by addressing
such matters as policy and strategy development, adopting an annual plan and budget, monitoring the Trust by the use of budgets and
meking major decisions about the direction of the Trust and senior staff appointments,

The Trust Board's responsibilities are:

1 To provide strategic direction for the Trust including the addition of further new Academies.

2. To provide strategic vision and support for school improvement across the Trust.

3 To monitor the effectiveness of the Academy Trust's support arrapgements and to ensure that the Academies are satisfied with
the support and that they are getting value for money.

4. To appoint and performance manage Academy Principals, Local Governing Bodies and Interim Executive Boards.

5. To ensure financial accountability to the Department for Education and within the Academies is secure-

At the Academy level, there are Local Governing Bodies, regional bubs and in exceptional circumstances Interim Executive Boards. The
main roles and responsibilities are:

Help set high standards by planning for the future and setting targets for school improvement.
Maintain and further develop school improvement.

Support the Principal to respond to the needs of parents and the community.

Support and engage with the local community.

Not intervene in the day-to-day management of the schoo! unless there are weaknesses in the school, when it then has a duty to
take action.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Trust has determined its key management personne] as the members of the Trust Leadership Team led by its Chief Executive. The
Trust Leadership Team have authority and responsibility for (directly or indirectly) planning, directing and controlling the activitics of
the Academy Trust. The members of this Team are shown below;

1. I Kershaw Chief Executive and Accounting Officer (Resigned as Accounting Officer 31 August 2017)
2. I Hickman Chief Operating Officer

3. H Clegg Director of Primary Academies

4. ] Telford HR Director

S. D Brown Director of Governance, Standards and Safeguarding

6. G Edmunds Director of Finance

7. 1Lane Director of Secondary Academies

The Academy Trust appoiated a new Chief Executive and Accounting Officer effective from the 1 September 2017. The post was a
Trustee appointment and its remuperation agreed by the Academy Trust Board. During the period 2016/17 this was the only change to
the Trust Senior Management Team. Remuneration of key management personnel is determined by the Trusts Corporate Coordination &
Scrutiny Committee (CCS). CCS co-ordinates the Trusts Achievement and Climate Committee and the Audit and Risk Commitiee on
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017
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items of strategic importance which overlap in order that an aligned view is taken prior to final consideration and sign off by the Board.
Trustees may delegate matters in relation to the remuneration of Trustees and Officers to the Chief Executive.

g. CONNECTED ORGANISATIONS, INCLUDING RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS

Related Parties and other Connected Charlties and Organisations

NET was formed in June 2012 and sponsored by Northern Education Associates (NEA). NEA is a successful school improvement
company and a completely separate legal entity. The Trust is responsible and accountable for the performance of its academies and has a
funding agreement with the Education & Skills Funding Agency with further supplemental funding agreements for each Academy it then
sponsors. With effect from the 31st August 2014 there have been no related party transactions between NET and NEA. For further
information regarding transactions with related parties see note 26.

Objectives and Activities
a. OBJECTS AND AIMS

Purpose
Qur values seek to ensure that each Academy provides learning experiences enabling every individual to begin to lock at learning as a
life-long activity, pursued within a community which proclaims that:

The welfare of others is the first concern of all

Such a guiding principle requires all those skills and attitudes that encompass such words as tolerance, flexibility, seasitivity, compassion
and respect Trustees would wish to endorse the strength of each of these words and to expect that each of them be associated with the
single most important principle of a comprehensive education. That is:

The education of every child is held to be of equal value in the comprehensive community school.

This principle applied to practice, needs more precise thought, determined implementation and constant monitoring than systems
pretending greater simplicity. It must overarch decisions, guide planaing and inform the style of relationships in each Academy. It is
through the discovery of organisatiopal and human relationships which reflect this principle, that expectations can be raised.

Tt does not mean that everyone is equal in talent, social behaviour or opportunities. Rather il recognises individual differences and
starting points, accepts proficiencies and deficiencies and notwithstanding these accepts the essential value and rights of the individual.

We believe that the progress of pupils and students in their academic, social and physical development should be our prime focus, no
matter their starting points. We believe that the Trust's success should be measured against students’ achievements and their progression
to further education or training, higher education and to economic security and success in the world of work.

The principles of the welfare of others and of equal value must govem ell decisions concerning pastoral and academic organisation and
practices. It should also inform the style of relationships between staff and students and between Academy and the community served.

In order to achieve this, we believe that investment in the development, welfare and care of our staff must be at the heart of our
employment policies.

There is a single overarching rule that the Trust expects to be promoted and upheld in the Trust and its Academies:

“Every student and adult is expected to behave in a responsible manner, both to themselves and others, showing consideration courtesy
and respect jor other people at all times*

b. OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND ACTIVITIES

Objectives, Strategies and Activities )
So that the Trust can fulfil our ambition for every child and ow commitment to placing children at the heart of everything we do, we have
seven strategic aims within the medium term Business Plan which govern our day-to-day operations. The seven strategic aims are;

1 Academy outcomes and effectiveness
Ouwr aim is to continuously improve pupils’ and students’ progress from their starting points to above the npational average, and
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

substantially abave the regional average, in order that they can utilise their academic achievement to reach their potential and confidently
build their future careers and lives.

2 Academy leadership and corporate governance
Our aim is to ensure that our Trustees’, academy leadess’ and governors’ prime focus is upon delivering high quality educational
experiences and outstanding outcomes for pupils and students.

3 Teaching, assessment and learning
Our aim is to promote and develop a bigh quality, teaching, assessment and leaming culture in each academy in order to ensure all pupils
and students make substantial and sustained progress.

4 Personal development, behaviour and welfare

Our aim is to keep children safe and promote in young people open, harmonious and trusting relationships that enable them to express
their feelings and opinions. Typically, pupils would listen well to each other in lessons, ask thoughtful questions of their teachers and
each other and use sound evidence to justify their views.

S People and stakeholders -

Our aim is to develop a highly skilled, innovative and flexible workforce, to retain people of talent and integrity who are committed w0
working together and to supporting the values and principles of the Trust; ensuring that we build strong, supportive relationships with
our partners and stakeholders.

6 Finance and value for money
Our aim is to €asure we achieve high value-for-money provision and services for pupils and students in our academies; where the quality
of the environment for pupils, students apd staff is fit-for-purpose in the first half of the 21st century.

7 Systems and organisational effectiveness
Our aim is to develop and create systems to ensure effective and efficient decision-making and accountability, alongside the accurate
measurement of progress toward the Trust’s strategic objectives and targets.

Publi¢ benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commissions general guidance on public benefit
when reviewing the charitable company’s objectives and aims and in planning future activities for the year. The Trustees consider that
the charitable company’s aims are demonstrably to the public benefit.

Achievements, Performance and Key Performance Indicators

NET provides education to primary pupils and secondary students in academies in the North of England. We aim to transform young
people’s lives through excellent leaming experiences leading to outstanding outcomes that ensure they can fulfil their potential. The
twenty academies are split equally between primary and secondary and are located in three hub areas:

. North East England conurbations of Tyne-Wear and the Tees valleys

. Yorkshire conurbations of the Aire-Calder-Dearpe Valleys

. Bolton - Manchester conurbation

Many academies are in arcas with double the national average level of disadvantaged pupils. According to the School Deprivation
Indicator used by Ofsted, all ten of the primary academies have deprivation scores in the fifth (most deprived) quintile based on the

Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACT). Of the ten secondaries, seven have scores in the fifth quintile, two in the fourth
and one in the third.

OFSTED reports have continually included positive commentary on the contribution of the Trust. KS2 and KS4 results have improved io
2017, but results in some academies are at a level that neither NET nor DE would expect.

The table below summarises the individual academies and their students, highlighting the challenges faced. from the above national
average with regard to deprivation and special educational needs;
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
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Z':mies NoR  Ghls% Boys schoot Mg;;:i'cw :Erig::s Supssp’:m ﬂS{E;\!% Stabifity De:':;‘v?l;un
Meals®%  Groups%  languege % % Indicator
Abbey Park 3 S02%  498%  475% 99% 43% 45%  05%  80I% 034
redenck 257 482% 518%  67.0% 9.5% 77% 302%  04%  T90% 038
Hlton 438 493%  507%  685% 135% 17.7% 167%  02%  798% 036
MountPellan 556  516%  484%  988% 97.25% 75.1% 230%  05%  893% 036
MerbnTop 366 450%  541%  665% 29.9% 1B.0% 158%  11%  848% 038
Norton 422 491%  508%  S6.6% 52% 32% B0%  00%  B3.0% 032
Ryecroft 337 460% 540%  663% 25.6% 16.3% 228%  0S%  T715% 045
Southmere 394  520% 4BOX  476% 85.7% 620% 155%  13%  89.6% 0.39
The Fesms 392  47.2%  528%  518% 34.0% 281% 120%  10%  84.4% 035
TheOakTree 434  475%  52.1%  6€6.1% 84% 3.7% 150%  18%  85.8% 051
Trust 3829  48.8% SLI%  S7.1% 35.9% 26.9% 185%  08%  &4% 038
Nationa) nfa 43.0%  5L0% 25.2% 31.6% 20.1% 12.1% 13% 85.7% 0.2
:i‘:::f{:s NoR  Girls% Boys% Sthoot  Etmic’ il SuiE;:n aﬂfc"% 5“;“"’ De:c_{'ngon
Meals%  Groups%  language % % Indicator
Biyth 809 496% 504%  54.3% 20% 12%  360%  15%  920% 033
Dyke House 1200 521%  479%  49.2% 20% 19% 58%  09%  925% 0.36
Grangedield 586 459%  S41%  50.2% 208% 10.1% 164%  07%  959% 0.36
Kearsley 495  485%  SL1%  48.1% 7.1% 5.3% 182%  34%  881% 0.26
Kirk Batk 1061  484%  SLE%  34.1% 27% 05% 192%  18%  o77% 0.25
Maror 1120 477%  52.3%  A47.5% 21% 0.8% 175%  58%  97.9% 033
North Shore 644  S514%  4BE%  61.7% 6.1% 33% 155%  12%  B3.5% 039
Red House 544 507% 493%  6LD% 11% 06% 300%  05%  965% 043
E’;‘;’;‘:ﬂ 526  59.0%  410%  67.5% 7.6% 65% 89% 19%  945% 038
Thomp 1150 4BS%  S1S% . 314% 34% 0.6% 101%  23%  96.6% 0.18
Trust 8108 499%  S5D.1% 48.5% aT% 24% 162%  18%  94.1% 032
Natfonal nfe  497% 503%  28.9% 15.7% mMo%  L7%  9L6% 0.20

28.7%

Academy Profiles and Inspections
The pie charts below show the latest Ofsted judgements for Northern Education Trust Academies compared to the judgements before
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

each Academy joined the Trust. OF the 20 academies in the Trust, 11 (55%) had been judged inadequate before joining. Of the 18
academies inspected posi-conversion, four (22%) remain inadequate. On donversion, four (20%) were judged to be good or outstanding.

Atthe end of the 2016/1 7°academic year, that figure had risen to 7 (39

The two academies still to be inspected post-conversion are Manor and Kirk Balk.

All inspection Judgements Pre
Conversion

o Outstanding x Good

s Requires improvement s Inadequate

KS2 Attainment

All Inspection Judgements -
- Latest

a Qutstansing < Good

s Reguires Improvement = Inadequate

The Department for Education published a brief report on interim Key Stage 2 resulis on 4 July. It described only attainment results
against the expected standerd threshold measures for rending, writing and maths (both individually and combined), average scaled scores
for reading and maths and the grammas, punctuation and spelling (GPS) test. GPS results are not part of the headline suite of

accountability measures.

National averages for 2017 are:

2016 2017 Change
sading 66% % +5%
Writicg 4% 6% +2%
Maths 0% 5% +3%
RWM combined 3% 61% +8%

Generally, interim results for NET academies show substantial improvement from 2016, but only Frederick Nattrass (73%) and Abbey

Park (62%) are above national average (61%5).
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (contipued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017
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Differeace
e R A P
2017 Ackaal | pyqicey | 29LTNat
Abbey Park % 62% 62% % 30% %
Frederick Natfrass 29% 65% 3% 4% +44% A
Hilton 2% - 0% 59% 1% +33% 2%,
Merkin Top 36% 55% 47% 3% 1% ~14%
Mouut Pellon 2% 45% 40% 5% 1 Hs% 21%
Norton 56% 66% S% 1% 1% %
Ryecroft 20% 65% 44% A% 4% | 1%
Southmere 52% 51% 43% 8% 5% -18%
The Fems 3% 65% S6% % 7% 5%
The Ock Trae 5% 0% 60% -10% +35% 1%

Trast © 36% 52% +16%

National 53% 61% +8%

The Trust average for the combined reading, writing and maths expected standard measure improved by 16 percentage
points from 36% in 2016 to 52% this year, narrowing the gap to national average from 17 to 9 percentage points. In terms of
individual subjects, the gap to national average in reading narrowed by half from 22 to 11 percentage points and the gap to
national average in maths narrowed from 13.5 to 8.5 percentage points.

Seven out of ten academies improved their combined reading, writing and maths expected standard measure in 2017.
Improvements ranged from 11 percentage points at Merlin Top to 44 at Frederick Nattrass, with six of the ten improving by
at least 19 percentage points.

At the higher standard:

. Six academies improved their results in reading, writing and maths combined;
. Nine academies improved their results in reading;

. Nine improved their results in matbs; and

Five improved their results in writing.

Academies with the largest gaps to national average are Mount Pellon (-20.7 percentage points), Southmere (-17.7),
Ryecroft (-16.6) and Merlin Top (-14.5). The three academies with results lower than last year were The Ferns (-17.8
percentage points), Southmere (-8.4) and Norton (-1.7).

Frederick Nattrass exceeded their target by 6.1 percentage points, with the remaining nine academies falling short by at least
5.1. Similarly, Frederick Nattrass exceeded their half term § prediction by 4.1 percentage points and Abbey Park matched
theirs. The other eight fell short by at least 4.7 percentage points although it should be noted that ane child could account
for up to five percentage points in academies with smaller cohorts.

As last year, reading seems to have been the most challenging subject. Academies reported that the test was far more
accessible than in 2016. However, this year, the number of marks required to reach the expected standard has risen from 21
(42%) to 26 (52%). Conversely, the maths expectation fell from 60 (54.5%) in 2016 to 57 (51.8%).
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NéR’l:HERN EDUCATION TRUST
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

Key Stage 2 Progress

Abbey Park Academvy 02 15 +2.6
Frederick Nattrass Primary Acodeary +5.2 (Sigh) +0.6 +42 Sigh
Hilton Primary Acadeny 1t +09 +04
Mertin Top Primary Academy 27 Sig) 06 22(5ig)
Mount Pellon Primary Academy .14 -16(Sig) +09 ,
Noston Primary Acadenty 01 +23 Gigt) +1.6(Sigt)
Ryecroft Pimary Acadeny 09 R +14
Soutimere Primary School - 07 +14 +07
The Pems Primary Acedemy +27 (Sigh) +52 (Sie) 43 (Siz?)
The Oak Tres Acaderny ‘ +09 +3.6 (SizH) +14
Trust Averare -l +12 412
National 0.0 0.0 0.0

Provisional progress results published on 31 August are very positive. Across reading, writing and maths, there are 30 progress figures
for the ten NET primary acedemies. Of the 30 figures, 19 are broadly in line with national averages and 8 are significantly higher.

Three primary academies that saw 2 fall in the combined RWM attainment measure have progress figures that are at least broadly average
with some significantly highes. The Ferns’ figures were all significantly higher than national average. In Southmere, progress was
broadly in line with national average and in Norton progress was significantly higher than national average in writing and maths.

Indicatively, there will be no primary academies below floor standard this year and possibly none will be deemed to be ‘coasting’
(assuming 2017 definition is close to 2016 definition).

Key Stage 4 Attainment

There was an overall improvement in all headline threshold measures in 2017. ‘Attainment 8 improved from 38.96 to 42.39, 4+ (A*-C in
En/Ma) went from 47.2% to 52.3% and Ebacc (4+) went from 11.9% to 14.4%.

Whilst overall improvement is to be welcomed, with some significant gains for some academies, these measures overall still fall far short
of the national average, especially given starting points from KS2 (which are broadly average at 27.9), referenced below with the
Average Point Score (APS) attained at KS2.

Page 10



NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017
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Grade 4+ (A*-C) in English / Maths by academy Progress 8
Academy KS2 2015 2016 2017 2016-17 Prediction
| _APS impact difference
Blyth 271 40% 39% 32% -7% -14% -0.86
Dyke House 28.1 56% 43% 69% +26% +7% . 037
Grangefield 27.0 53% 58% 61% +3% +1% 031
Kearsley 28.1 46% 32% 42% +10% -19% -0.79
Kirk Balk 29.0 52% 59% 64% +5% -7% -0.25
Manor 28.0 58% 49% 51% +3% +4% -0.20
North Shore 274 48% 26% 50% +24% 4% -0.06
Red House 279 28% 37% 33% -6% -18% -1.22
THCA 27.3 36% 31% 33% +2% +1% | -1.12
Thorp 28.1 61% 66% 60% £% -17% 0.19
Trust 779 50% % 2% +5% %
National 28.5 59% 63%
Key Stage 5 Attainment

Compared to KS4 this is a smaller cohort of students; performance in both academic and vocationa! qualifications were much improved
in 2017 with increases in average point scores per entry for both A-level and vocational qualifications in all four academies with 6™
Forms.

Biyth ATt | Kesrsley | Thorp | Trost | National
Atevelz APS 2016 173 233 70 73 pYE] 45
Alevels APS 2017 361 FERE 1257 2881 %31
Acadenic APS 006 73 743 76 %5 F7E] .63
Acedemmic APS 2017 2167 RAT T2.57 3891 2631
Applicd Gew APS N18 53 W3 EEX 33 351 6T
Applied Gen APS 2017 T—%551 WA ni B.00 PrE;;
Tech level APS 2016 WA VA& NA LX) 179 3097
Tech level APS 2017 364 VA NA 3641 3061
Kaown cestmstion 2016 160% 5% 3% 3% A NA
Kuown destnztions 2017 100% 9% 100%] 95%T 96% A
Cvarsty 2016 5% % % %% 5% VA
Catvensity 017 5T% S0%T 9% 6l AT VA
Russell Group 2016 % % % 3% % Y&
Russell Group 2017 % 3841 0% 2% %7 NA

The Trust is above national for the General Applied vocational qualifications points score per entry and is below but has closed the gap
towards the national A-level per entry points score. In summary;

A greater proportion of year 13 leavers have a known destination (96% as opposed to 88% at this time last year)

69% have a university place (58% last year)

20% will be attending Russell Group universities.

Both the above figures are above the last reported national figures (2015) of 59% and 17% respectively.

One student went to Oxford and another to Cambridge from Dyke House and a student from Thorp also went to Cambridge.

Academic qualifications are inclusive of A Levels with some additional qualifications, such as Advanced Extension Award, Extended
Project and International Baccalaureate.
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

The oumber of FTE studexts in this cobort decreased from 205 to 142.

The average points’ score per A-level entry went up by 4.7 poiats from 22.1 to 26.8, roughly equivalent to half of a grade
improvement (2016 National =30.45).

Average grade of best 3 A levels was a secure C in 2017 (2016 national = C+), up half of a grade on 2016. The proportion of
students achieving AAB including two facilitating subjects went from 5% to 14% (2016 pational average = 13.9%)

‘The average grade per A Level éntry was a C-, up from a D+ in 2016. The 2016 national average was a grade C.

Vocational qualifications in summary;

The number of FTE Vocational students decreased from 134 studeats to 68.

In the General Applied qualifications, the average points score per Vocational Entry increased from 35.1°in 2016 to 44.5 in 2017.
This is above the 2016 national figure of 34.67.

In the Technical Level Entry, the average points score per Vocational Entry increased from 17.9 in 2016 t0 30.6 in 2017
(2016 National = 30.77).

The average grade per Vocational entry in the General Applied qualifications was a Distinction® (2016 national = Distinction) and a
Distinction- in the Technical Level category (2016 national = Distinction).

Going Forward

The Trust appointed a new Chief Executive Officer in September 2017. Whilst the primary aim of the Trust continues to be the education
and welfare of the children in its academies consideration has been given to supporting other strategic objectives of the Trust to include;

L.

Forming an alliance with other Multi-Academy Trusts (the alliance of NET, Delta, Wise, Astrea and Outwood Grange
Academy Trust) to work collaboratively and strengthen recruitment, including Directors of Subject, who can be deployed to

work in our schools. The alliance was proposed by Sir David Carter and whilst in its infancy it aims to assist NET as we try to
increase our capacity.

The Board has long discussed the idea of becoming geographically tighter to the North East. Provisional conversations have
been met extremely favourably by both National School Comissioner and the Regional School Comissioner (North), Any
movement in the Trust’s estate would have to be managed carefully and subject to extensive Due Diligence of future
academies. Any release of academies further from the North East would be sensitive and would clearly sit as a board decision.

Building a shared vision and rapid school improvement based oo a 80/20 model; where 80% of key systems are the same with
20% left for innovation. In working towards this mode) the Trust has began the work to rapidly introduce and implement a new
vision and school improvement model

Consistent assessment in Year 6 in all.pximaries and the same trial examinations in English and maths in Y11 in all
secondaries

Launched a weeldy RAG meeting, chaired by the Principal and focused upon interventions required to support better
performance in Y6 and Y11.

Introduced 1:1 tuition for English and Maths based upon information from assessments

Introduced six-yeerly reporting to pareats in all 20 schools with half termly stapdardisation and identification of 6 students in
each class who require intervention.

Introduced a common assessment calendar across all 20 schools, using the same agsessments in year 6 and year 11 and the
same assessment window in all years

Created a vulnerable students register so that our most vulnerable children must be discussed at a weekly inclusion meeting
and each half term at SLT meetings

All 10 secondaries have been retimetabled to a greater or lesser extent to try to move to towards better curriculum parameters,
give additional oppostunities for English and maths and to help students attain a high attainment 8 score.

Have introduced weekly director of maths and English reports to give an overview of the work in each school

Piloting marking and assessment policy, behaviour system, collaborative learning and introduced a Principals weekly update
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sheet to.give key information to the Executive.

Strategic report
Achievements and performance

2. GOING CONCERN

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to
continue in operatiopal existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies.

Financial review
The Trust’s accounting period is from September 2016 to August 2017.

Most of the Academy Trust’s income is obtained from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants,
the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during the year ¢nded 31 August 2017 and the
associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Academies also receive grants for their major assets from the ESFA and via the Local Authorities. In accordance with the Charities
Statement of Recommended Practice, * Accounting and Reporting by Charities' (SORP 2015), such grants are shown in the Statement of
Financial Activities (SOFA) as Restricted income in the Fixed Asset Fund. The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund balance is reduced by
anpua) depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets concerned.

During the year ended 31 August 2017, total expenditure of £80,159 (2016: £79,820k) was met by recurrent grant funding from the
ESFA, other incoming resources and funding carried forward from the previous year. The surplus of income over expenditure for the
year was £13,391k. This surplus added to current reserves of £102,137k provides overall cumulative reserves for the year ended 31
August 2017 of £131,506k.

At 31 August 2017 the pet book value of tangible fixed assets was £141,740k (2016: £125,225k) and movements in Tangible Fixed
Assets are shown in note 13 to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing education and the associated
support services to the pupils of the academies within the trust During the year, the Trust received £18,800k relating to the transfer of a
new building at Thorp Academy from the ESFA.

Expenditure in the year has supported the key objectives of the Trust, with budgets being set in line with operational requirements that
supported these. In the course of the year the academies have continued to refine the staffing structures required to deliver their
objectives within the funding available.

The Trust also enhanced its ceatral team funotion by increasiog resources in school improvemeat from;

1. The appointment of secondary and primary directors of subjects and learning

2. A trust wide finance restructure ensuring the structures are fit for purpose going forward, internal controls are eahanced,
auditor recommendations are implemented and savings generated for further school improvement of £140k.

3. The Trust has also undertaken a number of Procurement exercises io Catering, Broadband, Printing and Telephony to generate

savings of £500k, over the life of the agreed conracts, which again have been used to support school improvement.

The Academy Trusts' Medium Term Business Plan 2015-2018 iacludes several financial key performance indicators (KPIs). ln
summary, the main KPIs are

1. The Academy Trust is compliant with statutory and ESFA sudit requirements which has been achieved.

2. Annual accounts meet regulatory standards and accurately report and forecast financial position of the Academy Trust. The Trust
draft statements, to be considered by Trustees, has achieved this.

3. Student forecasts are accurate. On average, the forecast student numbers used in the July 2016 Medium Term Financial Plan

were 2% greater than the actual student numbers given in the October 2017 census.

4. Academy financial management meets probity and regularity standards whilst acheiving value for money. The Trust continues 10
show increased performance in it's average internal audit scores, rising from 80% in 2015/16 to 88% in 2016/17.

S. The Academy Trust builds reserves for future investment in infrastructure and plant. The Medium Term Financial Plan continues
to show commitment to the 2/12ths reserves target. Reserves have risen incrementally during the last 4 years. However, the
planned rapid change for school improvement will require significant investment and the Trust will fall short of it's agreed target
due to this.

The KPls are assessed and reviewed against a number of supporting objectives and measures of success. The 2016/17 KPIs will be
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‘considered dnd shared with Trustees during 2017/18.

a. RESERVES POLICY

The level of reserves to be held by individual academies and then as a Trust overall has been considered using both Trustee knowledge
and experience coupled with best practice from CIPFA Treasury Management (in public services) and NPC Charity Financial Analysis.

The Trust policy has been prepared to help satisfy five main purposes;

1. To support Trustees in their statutory responsibilities and to manage effectively public funds in the provisios of managing NET
and delivering its objectives and prionities.
2. To emphasise the overriding importance of effective risk management as the foundation for ensuring organisational going

concern. The main risks being managed at present relae to funding adjustments, declining studeat aumbers, excessive
increases in student pumbers, proposed changes in funding and operational activities both internally and externally.

3. To provide transparency in decision making including providing clarity over the use of banking services and financial
instnuments that NET may plan to use for the prudent management/investment.

4. To encourage the pursuit of value for money and to promote the reasoned use, development and appreciation of resources to
improve school improvement.

5. To assist those involved in the regulation and review of finance in the public services, particularly those charged with audit and
govemance.

Academies are to build reserves over the medium term equivalent to two twelfths of the gross expenditure (i.e. two months revenue
spending). This is in line with current ESFA thinking around prudence in relation to budgeting/ best practice guidance based on gross
expenditure. This maybe updated by Trustees as the Medium Term Financial Plan is prepared each year but Trustees do reserve the right
to amend the policy in the interests of the Trust or specific academies.

The unrestricted reserves held as at 31 Angust 2017 was £7,236k and the restricted general reserves for the same period were £327k. The
reserves policy seeks a level of reserves of £11.2m by 31 August 2018 and the Trust is working towards this target by ensuring school
budgets and associated staffing levels and resources are being planned and managed effectively over the medium term. Trustees hawever
may decide to redirect financial resource to areas of priority and this will be the case during 2017/18 and going forward where reserves
will be used to further support schoo) improvement.

At the year end any balances being carried forward will be considered as part of the policies and guidance in relation to reserves and
budget setting. All funds remain that of the Trust and will be consolidated into the annual Financial Statements.

Pension Fund

The Restricted Pension Fund is in deficit to the value of -£20,967k (2016: -£33,755k) as at the year end. However this has been inherited
upon conversion to Academy status and Trustees will continve to monitor this situation closely. It should be noted that this deficit does
not present the Trust with a current liquidity problem or threat. The total peosion fund deficit does not mean there is an immediate
liability for the total amount. Rather the balence reflects the potential for increases in employer pension contributions in later years to
finance the deficits. The Pension administrators have concluded their triennial review of pepsion funds. As a result two Pension
Authorities, Northumberland and South Yorkshire have requested additional pension deficiency payments totaling £150k per anoum.

b. INVESTMENT POLICY

The Trust Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) is responsible for approving the Investment Policy and has on-going responsibility to ensure
monitoring and review of any investment. All borrowing shall be authorised by ARC, undertaken io the name of NET and conform to
any relevant funding body requirements. Investments should be made to further the trusts charitable aims, but must ensure that
investment risk is properly managed. Thbe investment objectives based on prudence are;

1. To achieve best financial return available whilst ensuring that security of deposits takes precedence over revenue
maximisation.

2. Only invest funds surplus to operational need based on all financial commitments being met without the Trust bank account
becoming overdrawn.

3. By complying with this policy, all investment decisions should be exercised with care and skill and consequeatly be in the best

interests of the Academy, commanding broad public support.

Trustees in the Audit and Risk Committee consider the financial statements of the endowment investment and review performance
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against the agreed requirements. There have now been two occasions where funds have been withdrawn to support various projects in
academies across the Academy Trust.

¢. PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Academy Trust identified two principal financial risks and uncertainties in the previous year's financial statements which were
around future changes in levels of funding and pupil levels. These continue to be the principal risks and uncertainties faced and will be
mitigated and monitored via the risk management framework put in place by the Trust. The two risks identified have been mitigated and
managed by a Trustee approved Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). The MTFP considers student aumbers over the medium term
based on shared information from Local Authorities {as the Admissions Body) and other local factors. Using the MTFP the Trust bas
successfully managed séveral academy restructures to mitigate falling student numbers and associated funding.

d. RISK MANAGEMENT

NET has been through a process to assess its cwrent and future risks and to identify and implement strategies for addressing risks. This
process allowed risks to be scored and prioritised in terms of their potential operational and financial impact, their likelihood of
occurance assessed and means of mitigation identified The Trust Board has reviewed the risks to which the Trust is exposed, and
considered in particular those relating to the strategic development of the Trust and its academies' on-going performance, as well as its
operational activities, and its finances.

Trustees recognise and support fully the need for informed and effective systems of internal control and risk management. In summary
the key risks identified and being monitored and managed are;

1. Educational Standards

2. Health and Safety/ Safeguarding

3. Governance and Leadership

4. Resources- Finance (inchuding Value for Money) and Human Resources
5. Resources- Academy Leadership and Effective Governance

Plans for future periods

a. FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Growth of the Trust was rapid during the first three years and the focus now is firmly fixed on our priorities to improve the achievement
in our current academies. The two areas in summary to note for future periods would be;

1. Planned and significant investment commencing 2017/18 in schoo! improvement leadership and capacity, recruitment and
retention of teachers and the development of a partnership to establish an Institute of Teaching with authority to recruit, train
and award teaching status.

2. The only growth to be considered would be in similar geographical areas close to custent academies, cs'pecxally where there
might be primary/secondary links.

EMPLOYEE CONSULTATION & DISABLED EMPLOYEES

The Trust has an anti-discriminatory policy which specifically covers uafair treatment of any service user, employee or prospective
employee on grounds of disability. The policy is available to all employees via a network based communication system and covers
responsibility, employment access, complaints, training and monitoring.

The Trust recognises the importance of internal communications and as such has a policy of ensuring all employees are kept informed of
developments within the organisation. The policy sets out the belief that teamwork through commuaication will Jead to more efficient
and effective service to both staff and beneficiaries. This is achieved through passing on information at regular team meetings and the
trust’s newsletter.

The Trust recognises equal opportunities as an integral part of the best practice it operates within its workplaces. NET bas established
equal opportunity in all areas of its activities including creating an environment in which the contribution and needs of all are valued.

Assessed disability access aad toilets have been installed where necessary and possible entrance ways enhanced and widened to enable

Page 15




NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

wheelchair access to all main areas of the Trust's academies. The Trust is committed to support the employment of disabled persons in
both recruitment and reteation of employees who become disabled whilst in: its employment, as well as through training, career
development and general awareness and support.

The Trust recognises the importance of internal communications and as such has a policy of ensuriog all employees are kept informed of.
developments within the organisation. The Trust believe that teamwork through communication Wwill lead to more efficient and effective
service to both staff and beneficiaries. This is achieved through passing on information at regular team meetings.

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS

There are no funds held as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR

The Trustees have confirmed that, as far as they are aware, there is no relevant.audit information of which the auditor is unaware. Each of
the Trustees have confirmed that they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as Trustees in order to rhake themselves
aware of any relevant sudit information and to establish that it has been communicated to the auditor.

AUDITOR
RSM UK Audit LLP has indicated it's willingness to continue in office.

The Trustees' Aanual Report is approved by order of the Board of Trustees, and the Strategic Report (included therein) is approved by
the Board of Trustees in their capacity as the company directors, at a meeting on 13 December 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

................................................

R Taru L Walton
Accounting Officer Chair of Trust
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SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company.limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Northern Education Trust has an effective and appropriate
system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEO, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls
conformn with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and
responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Northern Education Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They
are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material wealkmnesses or breakdowns in internal control.

GOVERNANCE

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the Statement of Trustees'
Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees bas formally met 4 times during the year. Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of
Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

L H Walton, Chairman

C Roberts

M Sanders

P Callaghan

S Duncan

J Copping

T Grieveson

I Foster

I Nolan

D Hall (resigned 12 December 2016)

D Pearmain (resigned 27 September 2016)
1 Kershaw (CEQ and Accounting Officer)
1 Hickman (as acting Accounting Officer)
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S Davison

The Corporate Coordination and Scrutiny Group is & sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to:

Strategic role

. Co-ordination between the Achievement and Climate Committee and the Audit and Risk Committee oa items of significant
overlap between them in order that an aligned view is taken on all issues of organisational significance prior to final
consideration and sign off of issues by the Board.

. Consider matters of urgency where a corporate view is required in between Board meetings.

. Consider impact of changes in policy by government, DFE, ESFA and Ofsted and formulate the Academy Trust's respoases to
the same.

. Formulate outline strategjes, policies and plans for the Trust overall i.e. consider draft business plan prior to submission to the
Board.

. Agree which requests for academies to join the Trust should be agreed in outline and then receive and epprove detailed
business cases / due diligence information prior to formal agreement for new academies to join the Trust once reviewed
by the Audit and Risk Committee.

. Agree major restructures of academies / groups of academies within the Trust to easwre the strategic impacts of these are fully
consider prior to implerentation.

. Agree all mafters in relation to the remuneration of Trustees and Officers that are not delegated to the Chief Executive by the
Board / Scheme of Delegation.

. Agree the communications and recruitment strategies for the Trust.

Finance role

. Consider/approve Trust/Academy anpual budgets and three year plans making recommendations where ncccssary.
Consider/approve Trust/Academy capital funding.

Hold Academy Principals and Chairs of Governing Boards to account for financial planning and performance.
Recommend to the Trust, the adoption of a three-year business plan and annual budgets.

Review arrangements for securing value for money, solvency and safeguarding of assets.
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. Investigate, or commission investigations into, variations in financial performance from budgeted targets.

. Consider in detail reports from the Chief Executive on issues related to assets, liabilities and capital

Scrutiny role

. Mhaiotain an overview of the Trust’s performance management arrangements.

. Review selected aspects (both policy development and operation) of the Trust’s programmes of
improvement.

Review selected aspects of the Trust’s systems and organisational effectiveness.

Consider the progress in implementiog the Trust 3 year business plan against the measures of success.
Make recommendations to the Trust Board and/or the Executive as appropriate.

‘Review progress on recommendations made.

* e o

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Board member Meetings attended Out of a possible
L Walton - Chairman 7 7
C Roberts S 7
T Grieveson 6 7
M Sanders [ 7
1 Kershaw 6 7

The Audit and Risk Commitiee is also a sub-commuttee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is as follows:-

Overall

. Maintain an oversight of the Trust's governance, risk management, internal control and
value for money (vfm) framework. It will report its findings annually 1o the board and the
Chief Executive as a critical element of the Trust's annual reporting requirements.

. The Audit Committee has no exccutive powers or operational responsibilities/duties

Ioternal Control

. The Committee shall ensure that the internal control systems, including audit activities, of
the Trust and any of its subsidiaries is monitored actively, independently and objectively
ip order to:

. Improve the effectiveness of the Trust's internal controls.

. Reinforce the independence and effectiveness of the internal audit fanction.

Provide a sounding board for Trust management on issues of concern in connection
with the Trust’s internal controi systems.

. Advise on the reliability of the Trust’s information systems and processes.

. Review Trust financial statements and budgets (Revenue & Capital).

. Advise the Trust Board and CCSG on the appointment of internal and external
auditors and providers of key financial systems i.e. Bank and General Ledger.

. Approve /consider procurement recommendations in line with Financial Regulations.

. Underpin the objectivity apd independence of the external auditors.

. Increase stakeholder confidence in the objectivity and faimess of the Trust's
finapcial reports and in the quality of the Trust’s corporate governance.

. To provide & medium of communication from the Trust’s auditors to the Trust
which is seen to be independent of Trust management.

. To ensure that financial transactions are undertaken in accordance with the Trust’s
financial regulations.

R.lsk Management and Value for Money Framework
To sact as the Trust’s Risk Management Group.

. Report on value for money of the Trust on a regular basis taking into account relevant
comparator review the timeliness of, and reports on, the effectiveness of corrective action
taken by the Trust’s managemeant.

. Review and approve the statements to be included in the annual report concerning internal
controls and risk management, prior to consideration by the board.

. Receive reports from external bodies for example the Education and Skills Funding Agency and

National Audit Office, and consider any issues raised along with management regponses
and action plaps.

Review the Trust’s codes of conduct, ethics and related corporate responsibility policies
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and how these are communicated and monitored; and T e T T e e

. To review staff pension arrangements.

Whistleblowing

. Review the adequacy and security of the Trust's arrangemeats for its employees and
contractors to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible wrongdoing in financial
reporting or other matters.

Attendance at meetings i the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

M Sanders - Chair 6 6
P Callaghan 3 6
J Nolan 2 2
D Hall (resigned 12 December 2016) 0 2
J Copping 3 3
1 Kershaw (CEO and Accounting Officer) S 6
I Hickman (as acting Accounting Officer) 1 1

The Achievement and Climate Committee is also a sub-committee of the main Trust Board. Its purpose is

to:

. Consideration of the evidence in meeting the Key Performance Indicators set by the Trust
and to hold the Leadership Team, whether Central Team or Academy, to account.

. Consideration of evidence about the academic attainment and progress of students over
time.

. Consideration of the evidence about attendance and behaviour of students.

+ . Consideration of evidence about the quality of teaching and learning provided to students.

. Conpsideration of the evidence about the range and quality of extra-curicular provision
expericnced by students.

. Consideration of the quality of provision for staff development and its impact upon the
quality of provision.

. To consider the views of parents and students about the quality of provision

. To consider on behalf of the Trust Board the overall buman resources strategy.

. To agree key personnel and staff development policies which form part of that strategy.

. To monitor the effectiveness of the Trust’s human resources strategy.

. Consideration and approval of the curriculum and extra curriculum provision and the
teaching and support staff resources required to deliver the entitlement curriculum in the
academies.

. Consideration and approval of the Academies Improvement Plans - short and medium term.

. The consideration of the general view of the condition and suitability for learning of the
academies buildings and sites and consideration of the quality of premises and the Jearning
eavironment.

. To review the procedures for risk assessment of health and safety matters in academies and

to ensure that Health and Safety issues are appropriately prioritised for action.

. To establish and review a Performance Management policy for all staff.

. Consideration and approval of the plans to develop and support the professional
developmeant of all staff, alongside the resousces required.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows: Meetings attended Out of a possible
T Grieveson - Chair 5 5
J Foster 5 5
S Duncan 1 5
I Kershaw (CEQ and Accounting Officer) 5 5

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As Accounting Officer, the CEO bas responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in the use of public
resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in
return for the taxpayer resources received.
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The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust’s use of its resources bas provided good value for money during each
academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data
where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by in
summary (with more detailed commentary outlined in the Trustee Report):

. Results at Frederick Nattrass improved significantly in 2017 for reading, writing and maths combined (RWM): 73% : 2017 and
29% : 2016. Across the Academy Trust overall the RWM expected standard measure improved by 16 percentage points. In
terms of individual subjects, the gap to national average from 17 to 9 percentage points. In terms of individual subjects, the gap
to pational average in reading narrowed by balf from 22 to 11 percentage points and the gap to national average in maths
narrowed from 135 to 8.5 perceatage points

. For secondary academies, many headline threshold measures in 2017 increased. Attainment 8 rose from 38.96 to 42.39, 4+ (A*-

C ip English and Maths) went from 47.2% to 52.3% and Ebacc (4+) went from 11.9% to 14.4%. Whilst overall improvement is

to be welcomed, with some significant gains for some academies, these measures overall still fall far short of the national

average.

The Academy Trust has restructured its Finance Teams and completed several large and complex procurement exercises within

Catering, ICT and broadband. The benefits of these reviews will start to be realised during 2017/18 and the suros saved are of &
sigpificant value.

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve
policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims
and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal contro} has been in place in Northern Education Trust for the year 1
September 2016 to 31 August 2017 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statemeants.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial and
compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal
ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy Trust's significant risks, that has been in place for the year 1

September 2016 to 31 August 2017 and up to the date of approval of the annual report aad financial statements. This process is regularly
reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Academy Trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and administrative
procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are reviewed and
agreed by the Board of Trustees;

. regular reviews by the Corporate Coordination and Scrutiny Group of reports which indicate financial performance againgi the

forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.

delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint Beever and Struthers as
internal auditor.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice oo financial matters and perforraing a range of checks on the Academy Trust's financial
systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

. testing of Payroll and HR systems

. testing of Education and Skiils Funding Agency, Academies Financial Handbook “Musts™

. testing of Financial Management, Financial Administration and Procurement

. testing of Business Continuity, Risk Management, ICT and Health and Safety.

On a quarterly basis, the internal euditor reports to the Board of Trustees through the audit and risk committee on the operation of the
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systeras of contiol and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financiul responsibilitios.
REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accounting Officer, the CEO hss respoasibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of interna) control. During the year in
question the review bas been informed by:

. the work of the ititernal anditor;

° the work of the external anditor;

. the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

. the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for thé development and maintenance of
the internal contro! framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control by the_ Audit
and Risk Committee and a plan to address auditor recommendations and ensure continuous improvement and further strengthening of
the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 13 December 2017 and signed on their behalf, by:

..............................................

L Walton
Accounting Officer Chair of Trustees
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Northern Education Trust I have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust Board of Trustees
and the Education and Skills Fuading Agency (ESFA) of material .irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and
conditions of funding, tinder.the funding agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part
of my consideration I bave had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2016,

I confirm that I and the academy txust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of funds by the
academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the acedemy trust’s funding agreemeat and the
Academies Financial Handbook 2016.

1 confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or fanding non-compliance have been discovered o daté. If any instances
are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

R Taro
Accounting Officer

Date: 13 December 2017
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

The Trustees (who are also the directors of Northem Education Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for prepaning
the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom ‘Geaerally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the Trustees must not
approve the. financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable
company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income .and expenditure, for that period. In preparing
tbese financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

3 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017,
. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards (FRS 102) have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements;

. prepase the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable company
will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
charitable company and bence for taking reasopable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and other controls,
which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring
graats received from ESFA/D(E have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are respoasible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the charitable
company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and disscmination of financial statements may differ
from Jegislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees oo 13 December 2017 and signed on its bebalf by:

“reraeeseeeciutransororsturiantnians desiasarene

L H Walton
Chair of Trustees
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A compsny limited by guarantee)

lNDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST

Opinion on finaocia) statements

We have audited the financial statements of Northern Education Trust (the “academy trust”) for the year ended 31 August 2017 which
comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and potes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law, United Kingdom Accouating Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), and the Academies: Accounts Disection 2016 to 2017
issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opmxon the financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s-affairs as at 31 August 2017 and of its incoming resources and
application of resowrces, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

. bave been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017 issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Ageacy.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internatiopal Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and epplicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the sudit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical respousibilities

in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Counclusions relating to going concern

We bave nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

. the govemors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is oot appropriate; or

. the governors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
about the charitable company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months
from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The governors are responsible for the other information. Our opinica on the financial statements does not cover the other

information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, cousider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financia) statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,

based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

‘We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees Report and the incorporated Strategic Report for the financial year for which the financiel
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
. the Trustees Report and the incorporated Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A coinpany limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
S N NORTBERN EDUCAT[ON TRUS!'

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its ¢environment obtained io the course of the audit, we
have not identified material misstatements in the Governors’ Report and the incorperated Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respéct of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,
in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the charity, or returns adequate for our audit have aot been received fom
branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are 0ot in agreement with the accounting records and returas; or

. certain disclosures of governors’2 remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilites of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities set out on page 24 the trustees (who act as trustees for the
charitable activities of the charitable company are also the directors of the charitsble company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
contro! as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due 1o fraud or ervor.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees
either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetber the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatemeat,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Ressonsble assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matenial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to inBuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these finascial statemeats.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's
website at http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume respounsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company’s members as a body, for our sudit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST

ISy u Gdtws’

Claire Leece (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of
RSM UK Acdit LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
Sth Floos, Central Square
29 Wellington Street
Leeds

LS14DL

|4tk Detember TOVY-
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO NORTHERN
EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

CONCLUSION

We have carried out an engagement in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 29 August 2017 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency ("ESFA") as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017, to
obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Northem Education Trust during the year 1

September 2016 to 31 Angust 2017 bave been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to
the authorities which govern them.

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our atteation which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and
income received during the period 1 September 2016 to 31 August 2017 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and
the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

BASIS FOR CONCLUSION

The framework that has been applied.is set out in the Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017 Part 9: Regularity Reporting. We are
independent of Northern Education Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are applicable to this engagement and we have
fulfilled owr ethical requirements in accordance with these requirements. We believe the assurance evidence we have obtained is
sufficient to provide a basis for our conclusion.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST'S ACCOUNTING OFFICER AND TRUSTEES

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Northern Education Trust's funding agreement with the Secretary of
State for Education dated 4 July 2012, and the Academies Financial Handbook extant from 1 September 2016, for ensuring that
expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to
the authorities which govern them. The Accounting Officer is also responsible for preparing the Statement of Regularity, Probiety and
Compliance. The trustees (who are also the directors of the charitble company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the
proper conduct and financial operation of Northern Education Trust and appointment of the accounting officer.

REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR REPORTING ON REGULARITY

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and are to obtain
limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2016
to 2017.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures s to obtain information and explanations in order to
provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity. A limited assurance engagement is more
limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and the procedures performed vary in natwe and timing from, and are less in
exteat thao for a reasonable assurance engagemeant; consequently a limited assurance engagemeat does not enable us to obtain assurance
that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we
do not express a positive apinion.

We report to you whether anything bas come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects,
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2016 to 31 August 2017 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our work included identification and assessment of the design and operational effectiveness of the controls, policies and procedures that
bave been implemented to ensure compliance with the framework of authorities including the specific requirements of the funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education, the Academies Financial Handbook 2016 published by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency and high level Gnancial control areas where we identified a material risk of irregularity is likely to arise. It also included
areas assessed as presenting a higher risk of impropriety. We undertook detailed testing, on a sample basis, based on the identified areas
where a material iregularity is likely to arise, or potential impropriety where such areas are in respect of controls, policies and
procedures that apply 10 classes of transactions. Our work was undertaken with due regard to the ‘Evidence to support conclusion on
regularity’ guidance in Academies Accounts Direction 2016 to 2017.

This work was integrated with our audit on the financial statements and evidence was also derived from the conduct of that audit to the
extent it supports the regularity conclusion.
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO NORTHERN
EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (continued)

This report is made solely to Northern Education Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 29
August 2017. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state t6 Northern Education Trust and the ESFA those matters we are
required to state in a report-and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respoasibility to
anyone other than Northern Education Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

A e Qudit Lo/

RSM UK Audit LLP,

Chartered Accountants
5th Floor, Central Square
29 Wellington Street
Leeds

LS14DL
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

s ¥ TS S SV T S Y e
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b ..

Unrestricted Restricted fixed " Endowment Totsl i fom
fonds Restricted funds asset funds fonds fuods funds
" 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2016

Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

INCOME AND
ENDOWMENTS:

‘Donations and
capital grants 2 201 224 1,153 - 1,578 1,946
Charitable activities: 5
Educatiopal
operations 1,623 69,645 - - 71,268 73,208
Teaching School - 90 - - 90 60
Capital donations -
transfer from Local : .
Autbority 13 - - 18,800 - 18,800 29,516
Other trading
activities
Investments
TOTAL INCOME
AND

E v

1,808 - - - 1,808 1,588
4

ENDOWMENTS 3,638 69,959 19,953 - 93,550 106,322

EXPENDITURE ON:

Charitable activities:
Teaching School - 97 . - 97 105
Other charitable

operations 2293 73,663 4,106 - 80,062 79,715

TOTAL
EXPENDITURE 6 2,293 - 73,760 4,106 - 80,159 79.620

NET INCOME /

(EXPENDITURE)

BEFORE

INVESTMENT

GAINS 1,345 (3.801) 15,847 - 13,391 26,502
Net gains on )

investments 360 - - 155 515 63

NET INCOME /

(EXPENDITURE)

BEFORE

TRANSFERS 1,705 (3.801) 15,847 155 13,906 26,565

Transfers between
Funds 19 - (680) 1,025 (345) - -

NET INCOME /

(EXPENDITURE)

BEFORE OTHER

RECOGNISED

GAINS AND LOSSES 1,705 (4,481) 16,872 (190) 13,906 26,565

Actuarial

gains/(losses) on

defincd benefit

pension schemes 24 - 15,463 - - 15,463 (19,283)

NET MOVEMENT IN
FUNDS 1,705 10,982 16,872 (190) 29,369 7.282
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST

(A company limited by guarantée)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
(continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

RECONCILIATION
OF FUNDS:

Total funds brought
forward

TOTAL FUNDS
CARRIED
FORWARD

Note

Uunrestricted Restricted fixed Endowment Total Total
fonds  Restricted funds asset fonds ‘funds funds funds
2017 2007 2017 2017 2017 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
5,531 B1,622) 126,633 1,595 102,137 94,855
7236 (20,640) 143,505 1,405 131,506 102,137
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07189647

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 AUGUST 2017
2017 2016
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 13 141,740 125,225
Investments 14 4,701 4,561
146,441 129,786
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks - 17
Debtors 15 2,629 4,257
Cash at bank and in hand 8,859 6,821
11,488 11,095
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within one year 16 (5,360) (4,875)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 6,128 ' 6220
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 152,569 136,006
CREDITORS: amounts falling due after more than one year 17 (96) (i14)
NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION SCHEME
LIABILITIES 152,473 135,892
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 24 (20,967) (33,755)
NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION SCHEME
LIABILITIES 131,506 102,137
FUNDS OF TBE ACADEMY
Endowment funds 19 1,405 1,595
Restricted income funds:
Restricted income funds 19 3127 2,133
Restricted fixed asset funds 19 143,505 126,633
Restricted income funds excluding pension liability 143,832 128,766
Pension reserve (20,967) (33.755)
Total restricted income funds 122,865 95,011
Unrestricted income funds 19 7236 5,531
TOTAL FUNDS 131,506 102,137

The financial statements on pages 30 to 62 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue, on 13 December 2017 and are signed

on their behalf,

L Walton
Chair of Trustees

M

R Taro

Accounting Officer

veveseBorrrenineconrcenisicatennis cenenee
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by gnarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

2017 2016

Note £000 £000-
Cash Qlows: from operating activities
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 21 2201 (130)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income 6 -
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (1,821) (1,509
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA 1,350 1910
(Purchase)/disposal of other investments 320 (4,078)
Net cash used in investing activities (145) (3.677)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of borrowings - 108)
Cash outflow to Salix Loan (18) )
Net cash used in financing activities (18) (117)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 2,038 (3.924)
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward 6,821 10,745
Cash aad cash equivalents carried forward 8,859 6821
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by gunarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUSTY 2017

1
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

11

12

13

14

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted),
judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below. The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these Financia) Statements are set out below. These policies have been-applied consistently, in dealing with
items which are considered material in relation to the financial statements, to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Company status

Northern Education Trust is a charitable company (the ‘Academy Trust). The address of the trust's principal place of
businessis given on page 1. The nature of the trust’s operations are set out in the Trustees' Report.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS102 bave been prepared under
the historical cost convention modified {0 include investment at fair value, in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement
of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts
Direction 2016 to 2017 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are presented in sterling which is also the functional curreacy of the trust.

Monetary amounts .in these financial statements are sounded to the nearest whole £1,000, except where otherwise
indicated.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set otit below.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties
related to eveants or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Academy Trust to continue as a going
concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for
issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concem, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial
statements.

Income

All income is recogpised once the Academy Trust has entitlement to the incore, it is probable that the income will be
received and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably.
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

15

16

1.7

18

19

Grants receivable

Grant income is included in the Statement of Financial Activitics on a receivable basis. The balance of income received
for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in, the relevant funds on the Balance Sheet. Where
income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the
income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performeance-related
conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is receivable
and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement, when performance-related conditions have been met, and are not
deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the
balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund.

Other grants from governmest agencies and other bodies are recognised in the period in which they are receiveable to the
extent the conditions of funding have beep met Where income is received in advance of entitlement of receipt its
recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income. Where entitlement occurs before income is received
the income is accrued.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions), where the receipt is
probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised at fair value of the consideration received or receivable in the
period it is receivable and to the extent the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated properties

A donated property, being the gift of a fixed asset, is capitalised only when it is brought into use. The property is
measured at existing use value, unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the property to
the donor should be used. The property value is recognised as income in the restricted fixed asset funds and
comresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in
accordance with the Academy Trust’s accounting policics.

Interest receivable

Interest receivable is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis.
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.10 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, itis
probable that a transfer of economic bepefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be
measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each -activity are made up of the total of direct costs
and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs
which-are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of
resources. Ceatral staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated op the portion of
the asset’s use.

Expenditure on raising funds includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable
purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and noo-charitable trading

Expenditure on charitable activities are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations including support
costs and these costs relating to the governance of the Acadery Trust appointed to charitable activities.

All expenditure is incjusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

All assets costing more than £5,000 are capitalised and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for
impairment. Subscquent costs are capitalised only when it is probable that such costs will generate future economic
benefits. All other costs of repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities as incurred.
Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the

private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life.
Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are

credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. -

Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged
to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of these assets, less their
estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives on the following bases:

Leasehold property and improvement - 2% to0 15% straight line basis
Motor vehicles - 25% straight line basis
Fixtures and fittings - 25% straight line basis
Computer equipment - 25% straight line basis

Residual value is calculated on prices prevailing at the reporting date, after estimated costs of disposal, for the asset as if it
were at the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.

A teview for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable
amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.
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NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
. (A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

112

113

1.14

1.15

Leaschold Property

Leasehold propertics are recognised in the balance sheet at their depreciated replacemeént cost as specialised properties (in
accordance with FRS 102 section 17). It is deemed appropriate to capitalise leasehold properties.as the organisation will
have full use of the-asset for its useful economic life.

Where leasehold properties represent donated assets they are recognised in the Balance Sheet at the fair value of their
depreciated replacement cost on their conversion.

The fair value of their depreciated replacement cost is determined through calculation by an independent expert; or
historic cost transferred from previous Local Education Authority body; or intermal valuation.

In accordance with FRS 102 section 27 where an event or circumstance arises that may indicate that the carrying value of
the asset is not recoverable ap impairment is recognised. This risk is assessed on annual basis by those charged with
goverance.

Where independent valuations for ESFA reporting requirements have been obtained, these are coansidered to represent
such an event or circumstance. Due to the cost outweighing the benefit it is not the organisation's policy to obtain an
independent valuation for every property recognised in the balance sheet.

Leasehold property is depreciated over its estimated useful economic life. Estimated useful economic life is determined
by industry experience driven by information provided by independent experts.

Liabilities

Lisbilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the reporting date as & result of a past eveat, it is probabie that a
transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can ‘be estimated reliably.
Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it
has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight line basis over the lease
term. Where the properties occupied by acquired academies are the subject of PFI contracts, consideration is given to the
detailed iteros of the relevant contract and to whether or pot the PFI contract transfers the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Academy Trust. If there is such a transfer of risk and rewards such assets are accounted for under the policies for

leasehold property set out above. If such risks and rewards are not transferred, the payments under the PFI contract are
treated as operating lease payments.

Investments

Fixed asset investments are a form of financial instrument and are initially recognised at their transaction cost and
subsequently measured at fair value at the Balance Sheet date, unless fair value cannot be measured reliably in which case
it is measured at cost less impairment. Investment gains and lossés, whether realised or unrealised, are combined and

'shown in the heading Net Gains/(losses) on investments’ in the Statement of Financial Activities.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.16

1.17

1.18

Financial Instrumeats
The Academy Trust has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in full in respect of financial instruments.

Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Academy Trust becomes 2 party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the financial instrument’s contractual obligations, rather
than the financial instrument’s legal form.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price (including transaction costs), except for those
financial assets measured at fair value through the profit or loss, which are initially ineasured at fair value (which is
pormally the transaction price excluding transaction costs), unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. A
financial asset or liability that is payable or receivable in one year is measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be
received or paid net of impairment, unless it is a financing transaction. If an arrangement copstitutes 2 financing
transaction, the financial asset or financial liability is measured at the present value of the future payments discounted at a
market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset only when there is a current legally enforcesble right to set off the
recognised amounts and the intention to either settle on s net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights to cash flows expire or are settled, or substantially all
the risk and rewards of ownership are transferred to another party, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership
are retained but control of the asset has transferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an
unrelated third party. A financial liability (or part thereof) is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Taxation
The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Scbedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore
it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust Is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation and Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Short-term Employment Benefits
Short-term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences (holiday pay) are recognised as an expense in

the year in which the employees render service to the Academy Trust. The cost of any unused holiday entitiement the
Academy Trust expects to pay in future periods is recognised in the period the employees’ services are rendered.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.19

120

121

1.22

Pension Benefits

Retiremeat benefits to employzes of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ("TPS") and the
Local Governments Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). which are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’
worldng lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and
future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial
valuations using a projected unit credit method. As stated in note 24, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is
insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution
scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recoguiséd in the period to which they relate. Differences between
contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments.

‘The Local Government Peasion Scheme

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are beld separately from those of the Academy Trust in separate trustee
administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actusrial basis
using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged.to net income are the current service costs and the costs
of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and
comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by
multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit
obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Actuarial gaios and losses are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

Fuod accounting

Uprestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of
the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the Department
for Education and the Education and Skills Funding Agency where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific
purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed. by the funder and include
grants from Department for Education and the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Endowment funds are resources to be held on Trust to be retained for the benefit of the Academy Trust as a capital fund.

Agency Arrangements

The Academy Trust acts as an agent in the administering of 16-19 Bursary Funds from the ESFA. Related payments
received from the ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the Statement of Financial Activities
to the extent that the trust does not have a beneficial interest in the individual transactions. Where funds have not been

fully applied in the year then an amount will be included as amounts due to the ESFA. The funds received and paid and
any balances beld with the ESFA are disclosed in note 28.

Ewployee termination benefits

The best estimate of the expenditure required to settle an obligation for termination benefits is recognised immediately as

. ‘an expense when the Academy Trust is demonstrably committed to tenminate the employment of an employee or to

provide termination benefits.
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1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coutinued)

1.23 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judg{nent

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future eveants that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and
assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assuroptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material edjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that
are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
(income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will
impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the
latest full actuarial valuetion performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at
31 August 2017. Any differences between the figures derived from the rol} forward approach and a full actuarial valuation
would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critica) areas of judgment:

Useful economic Jives of tangible assets

The annual depreciation charge for the tangible assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful economic lives and
residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are re-assessed annually. They are amended
when neccessary to reflect cwrrent estimates, based on technological advancement, future investments, economic
utilisation and the physical condition of the assets. See mote 13 for the carrying amount of the property plant and
equipment and gote 1.11 for the depreciation accounting policy.

Defined benefit peasion scheme

The company has the obligation to pay pension benefits to certain employees. The cost of these benefits and the present
value of the obligation depend on a number of factors, including; life expectancy, salary increases, asset valuations and the
discount rate on corporate bonds. Management estimates these factors in determining the pet pension obligation in the
balance sheet. The assumptions reflect historical experience and current trends. See note 24 for the disclosure relating to
the defined benefit pension scheme.

Property valuations

When gew schools join the Academy Trust, the new school land and buildings are included at a valuation at the date of
transfer. This valuatiop is then treated as deemed cost. During the year one new school building was gifted to the
Acedemy Trust as detailed in Note 13.

Management have taken advice from professional valuers in determining the amounts at which those buildings are
included in the financial statements.
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INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS
‘Unrestricted . Restricted fixed Endowment Total Toral
funds Restricted funds asset funds funds funds finds
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Donations 201 - - - 201 162
Devolved Formula
Capital . - 260 - 260 238
Otber capital grants - 224 893 - 1,117 1,546
201 224 1,153 - 1,578 1,946
Total 2016 162 - 1,784, - 1,946
—————————§ ————3 e ——
TRADING ACTIVITIES
Unrestricted . Endowment Total Total
fonds Restricted funds funds funds funds
2017 2017 2017 2017 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Charity trading income
School lettings 663 - - 663 744
Uniforms 45 - - 45 67
Consultancy 66 - - 66 23
Insurance claims 206 - - 206 63
QOther income 828 - - 828 691
1,808 - - 1,808 1.588
Net income from trading activities 1,808 - - 1,808 1,588
Other trading activities income in 2016 was £1,588k, of which £1,588k was unrestricted.
INVESTMENT INCOME
Ubrestricted Eogdowment Total Total
fueds Restricted funds funds funds fonds
2017 2017 2017 2017 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Bank Interest 6 - . 6 4
Total 2016 4 - . 4
——————— 4
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INCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Trust’s educational operations

Total 2016

FUNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

DIE/ESFA grants

General Anpual Grant
Start up grants

- Pupil Premium

Other DIE/ESFA grants

Other government grants

Local Authority grants
SEN from LA

Other Government Grants
Nursery Grants and EYSFF

Otber funding

Catering income
Trip income

Total 2016

Unrestricted . Endowmeént ‘Tots) Total
funds Restricted funds funds funds

2017 2017 2017 2017 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

1,623 69,735 - 71,358 73,268
1,696 74,572 + 73,268

Uarestricted Endowment Total Total

funds Restricted funds funds funds funds

2017 2017 2017 2017 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

- 60,012 - 60,012 61,238

- 35 - 35 49

. 5,999 - 5,999 6,030

- 1,063 . 1,063 1,480

- 67,109 - 67,109 68,797

- 279 - 279 676

- 875 - 875 464

- 157 - 157 242

- 1315 1,315 1,393

- 2,626 - 2,626 2,775

1,053 - - 1,053 1,018

570 - - 570 678

1,623 - - 1,623 1,696

1,623 69,735 - 71,358 73,268
1,696 71,572 73.268
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EXPENDITURE
Staff costs Premises Otber costs Total Total
2017 2017 2017 2017 2016
£000 £000 £000. £000 £000
Trust's educational operations ]
Direct costs 47,388 - 6917 54,305 52,320
Support costs 10,076 7,809 7,969 25,854 27,500
57,464 7,809 14,886 80,159 79.820
Total 2016 55,800 8,691 15,329 79.820
ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES
Direct costs Support costs Total Total
2017 2017 2017 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trust's educational operations 54,305 25,854 80,159 79.820
Total 2016 52,320 27,500 79.820
Analysis of support costs
Trust's
educational Total Total
operations 2017 2016
£000 £000 £000
Staff costs 10,076 10,076 10,001
Depreciation 4,106 4,106 3,790
Impairment of fixed assets - - 1,805
Technology costs 1,134 1,134 1,483
Recruitment and support 266 266 210
Maintenance of premises and equipment 1,581 1,581 1,607
Administration 656 656 782
Cleaning 579 579 560
Energy costs 1,150 1,150 1177
Rent, Rates and other occupancy costs 1,106 1,106 1,344
Insurance 661 661 803
Baok charges S8 58 -
Security and transport 498 498 479
Catering supplies 2242 2,242 2,040
Other support costs 546 546 367
Governance costs 534 534 578
Defined benefit pension costs 661 661 474
25,854 25,854 27,500
Total 2016 27,500 27,500
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ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES (continged)

A

Expenditure on charitable activities was £80,159k (2016 - £79,820) of which £2,293k (2016 - £3,675k) ‘was unrestricted,

£4,106k (2016 - £5,770k) was restricted fixed asset fund and £73,760k (2016 - £70,375k) was restricted general funds.

NET INCOME
This is stated after charging:

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:
- owned by the charity
Impairment of fixed assets
Operating lease reatals
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability

. Fees payable to RSM UK Audit LLP and its associates for:

Audit services - statutory audit
Other services - audit
Other services - non audit

Total

Fees payable for internal audit services

Fees payable for internal audit services during the year were £31k (2016: 23k)

2017 2016
£000 £000
4,106 3,790
. 1,805
1,106 100
(1,436) (1.600)
2017 2016
£000 £000
73 55

18 3

s 5

9% 63
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STAFF COSTS

Staff costs were as follows:

2017 2016
£000 £000
Wages and sdlaries 41,786 44,242
Social security costs 4,150 3.667
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 8,792 5.525
54,728 53.434
Appreaticeship levy 81 -
Supply teacher costs 2,075 1,798
Staff restructuring costs 580 568
57,464 55,800
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
2017 2016
£000 £000
Redundancy payments 274 333
Severance paymeots 306 235
580 568
Staff severance paymeots

Inciuded in staff costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling £305,929 (2016: £234,831). Individually,
the payments were £9,565, £5,000, £2,630, £8,290, £25,000, £3,650, £16,000, £9,198, £11,070, £3,500, £2,964, £48,000,
£6,680, £6,060, £5,000, £8,892, £12,600, £450, £7,915, £6,370, £19,755, £7,010, £15,200, £30,000, £12,500, £2,630, £20,000
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STAFF COSTS (continued)

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as. follows:

2047 2016
No. No.
Teachers 656 653
Administration and support 1,170 1,182
Management 125 126
1,951 1,96}

Average headcount expressed as a full time equivalent:
2017 2016
No. No.
Teachers 639 636
Administration and support 672 676
Management 121 122
1,432 A 1,43¢

The number of employees whose emplayee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

2017 20i6

No. No.

In the band £ 60,001 - £ 70,000 14 14
In the band £ 70,001 - £ 80,000 4 6
In the band £ 80,001 - £ 90,000 8 8
In the band £ 90,001 - £100,000 4 5
In the band £100,001 - £110,000 4 2
In the band £110,001 - £120,000 2 4
In the band £120,001 - £130,000 1 2
In the band £130,001 - £140,000 ] !
In the band £ 140,001 - £150,000 1 1§

Key Management Personnel Compensation

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust coruprise of the trustees and the senior management team as listed oo page
1 under Trust Corporate Senior Management Team. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer natiopal insurance) received by key management personnel for their services to the trust was
£859,978 (2016: £818,079).
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10. CENTRAL SERVICES

The Academy Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

School improvemeats
Financial management
HR and legal advice
Property management
Curricufum design

Staff deployment
Recruitment

Audit services (internal and external)
Data and Corero support
Busipess services
Health and safety

* o e s

The Academy Trust charges for these services on the following basis:
A flat 4% of income received, excluding targeted grants

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2017 2016

£000 £000
The Blyth Academy 176 186
Dyke House Sports & Techoology College 267 272
The Grangefield Academy 133 164
Kearsley Academy 131 122
Kirk Balk Academy 190 207
Manor Academy 249 254
North Shore Academy 157 137
Red House Academy 130 136
Thomas Hepburn Community Academy 121 128
Thorp Academy ) 220 238
Abbdey Park Primary Academy s 34
The Ferns Primary Academy 57 55
Frederick Nattrass Primary Acaderny 39 41
Hilton Primary Academy 6% 70
Merlin Top Primary Academy 64 61
Mount Pellon Infants & Junior Primary Academy 93 97
Norton Primary Academy 61 60
The Oak Tree Academy 77 72
Ryecroft Primary Academy 61 56
Southmere Primary Academy 7 64

2,397 2,454
Total

Page 46



NORTHERN EDUCATION TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2017

11-‘

12.

13.
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TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

Principals and Staff Trustees and Directors oaly receive remuneration in respect of services they provide under the roles of
Principals and staff members under their contracts of employments and not in respect of their services as Trustees or Directors.
Other Trustees did not receive any payments from the Trust in respect of their role as Trustees.

lan Kershaw, the Chief Executive, received remuneration of £141,989 (2016 - £140,678) during the year. There were po
pension contributicas made during the year on behalf of Ian Kershaw.

Gareth Edmunds, 8 Director of the Trust received remuneration of £91,279 (2016 + £87,629) and is accruing benefits under
Local Government Pension Scheme. The contributions paid in the year amounted to £18,635 (2016 - £20,600).

One director (2016: One) is accruing retirement benefits under a defined benefit pension scheme, as detailed above.

‘Related party transactions involving the Trusteesare set out in note 26.

During the year ended 31 August 2017, trave! and subsistence expenses totalling £7,161 (2016 - £6,063) were reimbursed to 4
(2016 ~ 4) Trustees.

TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy Trust has purchased insurance to protect trustees and officers from
claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The insurance provides cover up to
£5,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year ending 31 August 2017 was £6,022 (2016 - £4,796)

The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Leasebold
property and Fixtures aad Computer
improvements Motor vehicles fittings equipment Total
£000 £090 £000 £000 : £000

Cost
At ] September 2016 130,759 75 3271 3,533 137,638
Additions 421 27 712 661 1,821
Transfer from Local Authority 18,800 - - - 18,800
At 3i August 2017 149,980 102 3,983 4,194 158,259
Depreciation
At ] September 2016 8,350 55 1,706 2,302 12,413
Charge for the year 2,640 13 738 715 4,106
At 31 August 2017 10,990 68 2,444 3,017 16,519
Net boak value
At 31 August 2017 138,990 34 1,539 11m 141,740
At 31 August 2016 122,409 20 1,565 1,231 125,225

One school building was donated 1o the Trust during the year. The property was occupied during the year and consequently
capitalised as a fixed asset. The formal bandover is due to take place during the year ending 31 August 2018.
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14.

15.

16.

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Fixed agset investment by funds

Unrestricted  Restricted funds Endowment Tota!
funds £000 funds £000
£000 £000
Fair value as | September 2016 4,078 - 483 4,561
Transfer (1,078) - 1,078 -
Valuation changes 305 - 180 48s
Disposals - - (345) (345)
1,396 4,701

Fair value at 31 August 2017 3,305 -

The Academy Trust holds an investment portfolio coasisting of mainly corporate bonds and cash. £1,078,000 was reclassified as

endowment fund from unrestricted funds.

DEBTORS
2017 2016
£000 £000
Trade debtors 114 108
VAT recoverable 664 1,822
Other debtors L -
Prepayments and accrued income 1,846 2,327
2,629 4257
f——
CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year
’ 2017 2016
£000 £000
Trade creditors 1,066 951
Other taxation and social security 1,026 998
ESFA Creditor - GAG Abatement - 353
Other creditors 935 949
Accruals and deferred income 2,333 1,624
5,360 4,875

Included in other creditors due within one year is a loan of £17k from Salix which is provided on the following terms;

repayment of £8,750 every 6 months, no interest is payable on the loan.

Deferred income

Deferred income brought forward
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from previous years

Deferred income at carried forward

2017 2016
£000 £000
104 417
87 104
(104) (¢17)
87 104
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16. CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year (continued)
Deferred income held at 31 August 2017 includes unspent trip income carried forwarc'l of £87k (2016: £104k).

17. CREDITORS: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2017 2016
£000 £000
Other loans 96 114
Included within the above are amounts falling due as follows:
2017 2016
£000 £000
Between two and five years .
Other loans 70 70
Over five years
Other loans . 26 44
Creditors include amounts not wholly repayable within 5 years as follows:
2017 2016
£000 £000
Repayable by instalments 26 44

Included in other creditors falling due more than ope year is 2 loan of £96k from Salix which is provided oo the foliowing terms;
repayment of £8,750 every 6 months, no interest is payable on the loan.
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18.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
2017
£000
Financial assets measured at-amortised cost 1,233
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 4,343

2016
£000

1,746

3,420

Financia) assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade debtors and accrued income.

Financial liabiliies measured at amortised cost comprise trade creditors, accruals and other creditors.
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19. STATEMENT OF FUNDS & COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FUNDS

Balance ot ’ ) Balance at 3]
September 2016 Income Expenditure  Transfersiin/ont  Gains/ (Losses) August 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds 5,531 3,638 (2.293) . 360 7236
Endowment fapds
Endowment Funds 1,595 - - (345) 15§ 1,405
Restricted funds
Geperal Annual Graat (GAG) 2,118 60,237 (61.348) {680) - 327
Start up grants - 35 (35) - - -
Pupil premivm - 5,999 (5.999) - - -
Other DIE/ESFA grants - 1,063 (1,063) - - -
Local Authority grants - 391 (391) - - -
SEN from Local Authority - 762 (762) - - -
Other government grants 15 157 (172) - - -
Nursery grants and EYSFF - 1,315 (1,315) - - -
Pension reserve (33,755) - (2,675) - 15,463 (20,967
3 1,.6;22) 69,959 (73,760) (680) 15,463 (20,640)
‘Restricted fixed asset funds
D{E/ESFA grants - 260 (84) . - 216
Other DfE capital grant 1,218 866 (878) - - 1,206
Sponsorship capital
contribution 190 27 44 345 - 606
Assets igherited on conversion 112,268 18,800 (2,652) - - 128,416
Assets inherited on transfer 12,957 - 517 - - 12,440
Capital expenditure from GAG - - (59) 680 - 621
126,633 19,953 (4,106) 1,025 - 143,505
Total restricted funds 95,011 89,912 (77,866) 345 15,463 122,865
Total of funds 102,137 93,550 (80,159) - 15,978 131,506

STATEMENT OF FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR

Balance at / Balance at 31
September 2015 I Expenditure Transfers infout Gains/ (Losses) August 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 1000
Uarestricted funds )
Unrestricted funds 6,219 3,450 (3.675) (463) - 5.53)
6,219 3,450 (3.675) (463) - 5.531
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STATEMENT OF FUNDS & COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

Endowment funds

Endowment Funds

1532 - - . 63 1,595
1,532 - - - 63 1,595

Restricted funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 61,238 (59.120) - - 2,118
Start up grants - 49 49 - - -
Pupil premiuvm - 6,030 (6.030) g - -
Other DEE/ESFA graats - 1,480 (1.480) : - -
Local Authority grants . 676 (676 - - -
SEN from Local Authority - 464 (464) - -
Other government grants - 242 (227) - - 15
Nursery grants and EYSFF - 1,393 (1.393) - - -
Pension reserve (13,536) - 936) (19,283) (33,755)

(13,536) 71,572 (70.375) - (19,283) (31,622)
Restricted fixed asset funds
DAE/ESFA grants 654 238 (892) - - -
IT Grant 294 - (291) - -
Other DEE capital grant - 1,293 75) - 1,218
Spouosorship capital
contribution - 253 (63) - - 190
Assets inherited on convérsion 86,409 290516 4,120} 463 - 112,268
Assets inherited on transfer 13,221 - (264) - - 12,957
Capital expenditure from GAG 29 - 29 - - -
Capital expenditure from
unrestricted fands 36 - 36) - -

100,640 31,300 (5.770) 463 - 126633
Total restricted funds 87,104 102,872 (76,145) 463 (19,283) 9s.011
Total of funds 94,855 106,322 (79,820) - (19,220) 102,137

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

(i) GAG balance carry forward is to be used for recurrent expenditure in the forthcoming period. Under the Trust's Funding
Agreement with the Secretary of State the Trust was not subject to a limit of GAG which could be carried forward as at 31
August 2017

(ii) Restricted Fixed Asset Funds relate to income received from the DFE, otber government grants, transfers from GAG income
and income from sponsors of individual companies prior to the merger with the Trust. The funds balance includes donated
capital, being academy buildings, contents and ICT assets. The depreciation relating to the assets procured is charged against
these funds over the life of the assets.

(iil) Unrestricted Funds relate to funds brought forward upon individual schools integrating with the trust and seif-generated
income by the Trust's Academies.

(iv) The Restricted Pension Fund is in deficit to the value of £20,967k (2016: £33,755k) at the year end. However, this has been
inherited upon conversion to Academy status. The Trustees wiil continue to monitor the situation closely.

(v) The Endowment Fund was brought forward and invested to provide a retum on capital. During the year £345k (2016: £nil)
was transferred to Réstricted Fixed Asset funds.

A total of £345k (2016: nil) has been transferred from endowment fund to restricted fixed assets for the purchase of capital items
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19. STATEMENT OF FUNDS & COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

in the forthcoming year.
A total of £680k (2016: nil) has been transferred from restricted fund to restricted fixed assets for the purchase of capital ftems.

A total of £ail (2016: £463k) has been transferred from unrestricted funds to restricted fixed asset funds to aliocate the unspent
capital included within unrestricted funds that is required to be recognised within restricted fixed asset funds.
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19.  STATEMENT OF FUNDS & COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

Total cost analysis by Academy

Teaching and Other support  Educational otber costs

education costs supplies (excluding

staff costs ' depreciation)

£000 £'000 £000 £'000

The Ferns Primary Academy 1,162 198 18 423
Hilton Academy 1,623 178 105 505
Merlin Top Primary Academy. 1,303 129 66 552
Mount Petlon [nfants & Junior Academy 1,682 406 142 421
Ryecroft Primary Academy 1,204 154 92 488
Kearsley Academy 2,071 489 123 660
North Shore Academy 2,803 521 115 1,145
Dyke House Sports & Technology Coliege 5.915 651 269 1,383
Abbey Park Primary Academy 690 156 44 214
Thomas Hepburn Community Academy 1,982 521 84 969
The Grangeficld Academy 2,419 350 166 656
The Blyth Academy 3,552 547 124 1,059
Frederick Nattrass Primary Academy 1,035 120 65 270
The Oak Tree Academy 1,519 165 90 453
Norton Primary Academy 1,340 104 69 402
Southmere Primary Academy 1,423 206 92 394
Kirk Balk Acedemy 2,750 869 259 1,584
Manor Academy . 5,230 651 160 1225
Red House Academy 2,362 516 97 755
Thorp Academy ’ 4,917 584 233 1,305
The Centre _346 2561 0 1313
47.38 10,076 2413 16176

Total 2017

£'000
1,801
2,411
2,050
2,651
1,938
3,343
4.584
8,218
1,104
3,556
3,591
5,282
1,490
2227
1.915
2,115
5,502
7,286
3,730
2.039
4220
76,053

Total 2016

£'000
1,795
2,124
1,874
2,634
1,967
3312
4,538
10,532
1,097
4,103
4,182
5,100
1,322
2,100
1,702
1,931
5,823
7253
3,808
6,679
2,154
76,030
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Analysis of Academies by Fund Balance

The Ferns Primary Academy

Hilton Academy

Merlin Top Primary Academy

Mount Pellon Infants & Junior Academy
Ryecroft Primary Academy

Kearsley Academy

North Shore Academy

Dyke House Sports & Technology College
Abbey Park Primary Academy

Thomas Hepburn Community Academy
The Grangeficld Academy

The Blyth Academy

Frederick Nattrass Primary Academy
The Oak Tree Academy

Norton Primary Academy

Southmere Primary Academy

Kirk Balk Academy ’

Mapor Academy

Red House Academy

Thorp Academy

The Centre

Restricted fixed asset fund
Endowment fund
Pension reserve

Total 2017
£'000

15

15

15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
is
15
15
15
15
15
15

3

-2

2
2,563

143,505
1,405
(20967)
131,506

5 e T Ly et DT TS L o

Total 2016
£'000
207
419
396
807
234
(364)
(358)
152
238
(911)
1,405
285
212
509
697
31s
1,178
864
1,294
201
116
1.664

126,633
1,595
(33,755)
102,137

LTI T TS s

Trustees take seriously their responsibility to ensure the Trust continues as a going concem over the medium term. Given the current
overall economic climate, pressure on government spending, changes in establishing national oversight of academies and MAT's and
funding of Local Government Pension Schermes (LGPS), medium term financia! planning is a high priority for Trustees.

The Trust continues to successfully evidence an effective and progressive approach to Financial Planning and Management with a
seamless link to both school improvement and continuous student welfare. Overall Trust Reserves bave risen incrementally (2012/13:
£2m to £7.5m in 2016/17) providing financial stability, but more importantly a foundation to now be able to invest substantially in

school improvement.

Trustees have considered individual academy reserves within the Academy Trust with the plan going forward to manage funds (at £15k
per academy) at a Trust level. These funds will better support a new, consistent and student focussed approach to school improvement

across al) academies.
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20.  ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS:

Unrestricted Restricted Gixed Endowment Total

fupds Restricted funds asset funds funds fonds

2017 2017 2017 2017 2017

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Tangible fixed assets - - 141,739 - 141,739
Trade investments - 3,305 - . 1,396 4,701
Current assets 4275 5,440 1,766 9 11,490
Creditors due within one year 87 (5,274) - - (5,361)
Creditors due in more than one year - (96) - - (96)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (20,967) . - (20,967)
1236 (20,640) 143,505 1,405 131,506

1} —————

ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS - PRIOR YEAR

Unrestricted  Restricted funds ~ Restricted fixed Endowment finds Total

funds asset funds funds

2016. 2016 2016 2016 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Tangible fixed assets - - 125,225 - 125,225
Trade investments 4,078 - - 483 4,561
Current assets 1,453 7,122 1,408 1112 11,095

Creditors due within one year - (4,875) - - (4,875)

Creditors due in more than-one year - (1149) - - (114)

Provisions for liabilities and charges - (33,755) - - (33,755)
5,531 (31,622) 126,633 1,595 102,137

21.  RECONCILIATION OF NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2017 2016
£000 £000

Net income for the year (as per Statement of Financial Activities) 13,906 26,565
Adjustment for:
Depreciation charges 4,106 3,790
Impairment of fixed assets - 1,805
Investment income '(6) -
Decrease/(increase) in stocks : 17 -
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 1,628 (327)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 485 (894)
Capital grants from D(E and other capital income (1.350) (1,910)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 2,018 462
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 657 974
Net (gain)/loss on assets and liabilities from local authority on conversion (18,800) (29,532)
Investment gains (460) (63)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 2,201 (130)

——
—— - ————}
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22.

23,

24.

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2017 2016
£000 £000
Cash in hand and at bank 8,859 6821
Total 8,859 6821

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the period of the Funding Agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any asset for which a
Government capital grant was received, the trust is required either to re-invest the proceeds or to repay to the ESFA the same
proportion of the proceeds of the sale or disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State.

Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the trust serving notice, the trust
shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to:

(a) the value at that time of the trust’s assets held for the purpose of the trust; and

(b) the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the Secretary of State under the
Funding Agreement.

PENSION COMMITMENTS
The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal peasion schemes: the Teacher's Peasion Scheme for England and Wales

(TPS) for academic and related stafF; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff. Both are Multi-
employer defined benefit pension schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS on 31 March 2016.

Contributions amounting to £783k were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2017 (2016 - £819k) and are included within
creditors.

Teachers' Pensiop Scheme

Iutroduction

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pensions
Regulations (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for
full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment
or a change of contract, although they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go’ basis — these contributions along with those made
by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by
Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with
the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the

" review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value

of future costs, design of benefits and many other faciors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March
2012 and in accordance with the Public Service Peasions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valvation
report was published by the Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent
consultation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay, including a 0.08% employer administration cbarge (currently
14.1%)
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24.

PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

o total scheme liabilities (pensions curreatly in payment and the:estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective
date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional mvesrmems beld at
the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a notional past service deficit of £14,900 million
an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations
the assumed real rate of retumn is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is
assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.48% (including 0.08% administration fees), which was payable
from September 2015. The next valuation of the TPS is currently underway based on March 2016 data, whereupon the employer
contribution rate is expected to be reas d and will be payable from 1 April 2019.

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £4,226k (2016 - £2,468k).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is oo the Teachers’ Pensions website
(wwv.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2014/06/publication-of-the-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS s a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust bas accounted for its
coatributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set out above the information available on
the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The total contribution
made for the year ended 31 August 2017 was £3,345k (2016 - £3,404k), of which employer's contributions totalled £2,552k

(2016 - £2,595k) and employees’ contributions totalled £793k. (2016 - £809k). The agreed contribution rates for future years are

12.8% for employers and 5.5-12.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure,

outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came
into force on 18 July 2013.

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Fair value at Fair value at

31 Aogust 31 August

2017 2016

£000 £000

Equities 33,003 27,319
Bonds 2471 2,130
Other bonds 2,183 1,860
Property 3,122 2,758
Cash and other liquid assets 2,999 1,368
Other 1,520 940
Total market value of assets 45,298 36,515

e
——— ]

The actual return on scheme assets was £5,389 (2016 - £5,309k).
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PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure account are as follows:

Current service cost

Net interest cost

Past service cost
Administration expenses

Total

Moveéments in the presest value of the defined beaefit obligation were as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation
Cugreot service cost

Interest cost

Employee contributions

Actuarial (geins)/losses

Benefits paid

Past service costs

Other

Closing defined benefit obligation

Movements in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets:

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Return oo plan assets )
Actuarial gains

Employer contributions

Employee coantributions
Administration charges

Benefits paid

Closing fair value of scheme assets

2017 2016
£000 £000
(4,550) (2.943)
(657) (474)
16 (110)
@ @
(5227) (3.531)
2017 2016
£000 £000
70,270 41,670
4,550 2,943
1,436 1,600
793 809
(10,074) 23,479
(126) (328)
16 10
- 13
66,265 70,270
2017 2016
£000 £000
36,515 28,134
779 1126
5,389 4183
2,552 2,595
793 809
4) %)
(726) (328)
45,298 36515

NPT A S SR AR st )
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Principal actuarial assumptions

The Ferns Primary Academy

Hiltoo Academy

Merlin Top Primary Academy

Mount Pellon Infants & Junior Academy
Ryecroft Primary Academy

Kearsley Academy

North.Shore Academy

Dyke House Sports & Technology College
Abbey Park Primary Academy .
Thomas Hepbum Community Academy
The Grangefield Academy

The Blyth Academy

Frederick Nattrass Primary Academy
The Oak Tree Academy

Norton Primary Academy

Southmere Primary Academy

Kirk Balk Academy

Manor Academy

Red House Academy

Thorp Academy

The Centre

Rate of increase on  Rate of increase for  Discount rate for

salaries
2017 2016
% %
3.2 34
34 34
33 35
33 34
33 35
32 34
29 34
29 34
3 34
34 34
3.0 34
3.6 35
3.0 34
3.0 34
3.0 3.4
313 34
34 3.6
3.0 34
34 34
34 34
34 . 34

pension
paymeats/inflation
2017 2016
% %
24 2.1
1.9 1.9
20 2.0
2.0 1.9
20 2.0
24 2.1
1.9 1.9
19 1.9
20 19
1.9 19
2.0 19
2.1 20
2.0 1.9
2.0 1.9
20 19
2.0 1.9
22 1.9
2.0 1.9
1.9 19
19 1.9
1.9 1.9

scheme lLiabilities
2017 2016

% %
2.5 2.1
2.5 2.0
25 2.0
2.5 20
2.5 2.0
2.5 2.1
2.5 2.0
2.5 2.0
25 20
2.5 2.0
2.5 2.0
2.5 20
25 2.0
2.5 20
25 2.0
25 20
24 2.1
25 20
25 2.0
25 20
2.5 20
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Mortality

are:

The Ferns Primary Academy

Hilton Academy

Merlin Top Primary Academy

Mount Pellon Infants & Junior Academy
Ryecroft Primary Academy

Kearsley Academy

North Shore Academy

Dyke House Sports & Technology College
Abbey Park Primary Academy

Thomas Hepburn Community Academy
The Grangefield Academy

The Blyth Academy

.Frederick Nattrass Primary Academy
The Oak Tree Academy

Norton Primary Academy-

Southmere Primary Academy

Kirk Balk Academy

Manor Academy

Red House Academy

Thorp Academy

The Centre

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

e e T teos hoer et it o £

The assumed life expectations on retirement-age. 65

Males Females
Retiring  Retiringin ~ Retiring  Retiring in 20
today 20 years today years
215 23.7 24.1 26.2
228 25.0 26.3 28.6
221 230 252 270
221 23.0 252 270
215 237 24.1 26.2
228 250 249 272
22.8 25.0 249 272
2238 25.0 249 27.2
221 230 25.2 27.0
228 250 263 286
228 25.0 24.9 27.2
228 25.0 249 272
228 25.0 249 272
228 25.0 249 272
2238 25.0 249 272
22.1 23.0 252 27.0
23.0 253 25.6 284
228 25.0 24.9 272
2.8 25.0 26.3 28.6
22.8 25.0 263 28.6
228 250 26.3 28.6

At 31 August 2017 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases was:

Land and Buildings

Within 1 year
Between ) and § years
After more than S years

Total

Other

Within 1 year

Between 1 and 5 years
After more than S years

Total

2017 2016
£000 £000
972 1,006
2,768 2806
12,614 13,350
16,354 17,162
99 100
193 80

- 5
292 185
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26.

27

28.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust's operations and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trust has an interest. All
transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm's Jength and in accordance with the Academy Trust's financial
regulations and normal procurement procedures.

During the year the Academy Trust received income of £13k (2016: nil) from Leighton Management Limited and with whom
Trustee Paul Callaghan is the chairman, This was for a contribution to a trip to Chicago for the students of Red House Academy.
The balance outstanding in debtors in rejation to this transaction is £nil (2016: nii).

During the year the Academy Trust received income of £ail (2016: £4k) from Locala Partnerships and with whom trustee Mark
Sanders is the Chainman. At the year end there is a debtor balance of £ail (2016: £4k).

MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up
while be/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding
£10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be.a member.

AGENCY ARRANGEMENTS

The trust administers the disbursement of the new discretionary support for learuers, 16-19 Bursary Funds, oo bebalf of the
ESFA. In the yeas it received £57k and disbursed £25k from the fund An amount of £63k (2016: £50k) is included in other
creditors relating to undistributed funds that is repayable to ESFA. The trust retained a bemeficial interest in individual
transactions such that less than £1k bas been recognised in income and expenditure in the statement of financial activities.




